ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 1, 2002
1:15 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Beverly Msek, Co-Chair
Representative Drew Scal zi, Co-Chair
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Joe G een
Representative Lesil MCuire
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Chenault
Representative Gary Stevens

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 307
"An Act delaying to June 30, 2007, the last date by which
hydr ocar bon exploration geophysical work nust be performed or
drilling of a stratigraphic test well or exploratory well nust
be conpleted in order for a person to qualify for an exploration
incentive credit.”

- MOVED HB 307 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 232
"An  Act permtting state residents to purchase renote
recreational cabin sites.”

- HEARD AND HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 308

"An Act extending to discoveries of oil or gas in the Tanana
Ri ver drainage basin the discovery royalty credits that are

authorized for |essees of state land drilling exploratory wells
and making the first discovery of oil or gas in an oil or gas
pool and for |icensees under oil and gas exploration |icenses

making the first discovery of oil or gas in an oil or gas poo
that convert those licenses to oil and gas | eases.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 1, 2002



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 307

SHORT TI TLE: O L/ GAS EXPLORATI ON | NCENTI VE CREDI T

SPONSOR(S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) FATE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/ 14/ 02 1955 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/02

01/ 14/ 02 1955 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1955 (H) &G, RES, FIN

01/ 16/ 02 1992 (H COSPONSOR( S) : DAVI ES

01/ 31/02 (H 0&G AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

01/ 31/ 02 (H Moved Qut of Conmmttee

01/ 31/ 02 (H M NUTE( O&G)

02/ 01/ 02 2113 (H 0&G RPT 6DP 1NR

02/ 01/ 02 2114 (H DP: CHENAULT, DYSON, KOHRI NG
FATE,

02/ 01/ 02 2114 (H) JOULE, OGAN, NR: GUESS

02/ 01/ 02 2114 (H FN1: | NDETERM NATE( DNR)

02/ 01/ 02 2114 (H FN2: | NDETERM NATE( REV)

02/ 01/ 02 2128 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : DYSQON, GREEN

02/ 01/ 02 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 232
SHORT TI TLE: REMOTE RECREATI ONAL CABI N SI TE SALES
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) FATE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 05/ 01 0860 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 05/ 01 0860 (H RES, FIN

04/ 05/ 01 0860 (H REFERRED TO RESOURCES

04/ 06/ 01 0890 (H COSPONSOR(S): W LSON

04/ 11/ 01 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 11/01 (H <Bi | | Post poned>

04/ 20/ 01 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 20/ 01 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

01/ 23/ 02 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

01/ 23/ 02 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 01/ 02 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

MARK MYERS, Director
Division of Gl & Gas

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 1, 2002



Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

550 West Sevent h Avenue, Suite 800
Anchor age, Al aska 99501-3560

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 307.

DI CK MYLIUS, Resource Assessnent & Devel opnent Manager

D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Department of Natural Resources

550 West 7th Avenue Suite 1050

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-3579

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that DNR is concerned that HB 232
duplicates an existing programthat is working.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-4, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR BEVERLY MASEK called the House Resources Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:15 p.m Represent ati ves Masek
Scal zi, Fate, Geen, MQ@ire, and Kerttula were present at the
call to order. Representati ve Kapsner arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 307- O L/ GAS EXPLORATI ON | NCENTI VE CREDI T

Number 0010

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the first order of business before
the commttee would be HOUSE BILL NO 307, "An Act delaying to
June 30, 2007, the last date by which hydrocarbon exploration
geophysi cal work  nust be perforned or drilling of a
stratigraphic test well or exploratory well nust be conpleted in
order for a person to qualify for an exploration incentive
credit.”

Nunber 0212

REPRESENTATI VE FATE, speaking as the sponsor, explained that HB
307 is an extension of a bill already in existence that sunsets
in 2004; this bill extends the life of that bill to 2007. He
explained that this bill provides an exploration incentive
credit (EIC) to the industry. He said the [EIC] already exists
and this bill extends the incentive for [an additional] three
years. He said the [EIC] allows a conpany to explore in the
Nenana basin, which he suggested has an extrenely high
potential . Currently, there is only one conpany to bid on the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 1, 2002



area and therefore only one explorer in the Nenana basin. He
indicated that this legislation wuld allocate noney to be used
as an incentive credit toward future royalties. He noted that
Mark Myers was on tel econference and could provide the details.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE referred to a previous debate in the House
Special Conmmttee on GOl and Gs; he suggested that the
commttee was neutral on this bill and that is why it was noved
out .

Number 0389

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if Mark Myers could explain what the
| egislation is granting with the EIC

Number 0401

CO CHAIR MASEK announced that Representative Kapsner had
arrived.

Nunber 0434

MARK MYERS, Director, Dwvision of GI & Gas, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, testified via teleconference. He i nforned
the commttee that HB 307 does extend the economic incentive
credit program that was passed by the legislature in 1994, He
said the [EIC] had a ten-year period, which is slated to sunset
in 2004. He explained that the EIC grants a credit against
either royalties, taxes, |ease-bonuses, or rentals; the credit
can be up to 50 percent of the cost of certain activities.
Those activities include: drilling wells, expl oration,
stratigraphic test wells, or geophysical information such as
sei sm c data.

MR. MYERS said the [EIC] can be up to 50 percent of the cost of
the exploration well, the stratigraphic test well, or the
seismc data on "unl eased" state land; the [EIC] can be up to 25
percent on federal or Native-owned | and. He explained that the
program was designed to |limt the total exposure to $30 mllion;
an individual project, which was never defined, can get up to $5
mllion total in credit.

Nunmber 0576
MR. MYERS suggested that the legislative intent behind the

program was fundanental for the state to acquire information
that it would not otherw se be able to acquire regarding oil and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 1, 2002



gas. He said the state takes that data and shows it to third
parties to bolster conpetition in the industry. He offered sone
hi story about this bill. He said this [legislation is based on
a] stratigraphic test well program which is a program that
conpanies participate in before the exploration season or
exploration in an area.

MR. MYERS expl ained that the [exploration conpany] would go into

an "unl eased" basin or area, drill a well as a consortium anong
10 or 12 conpanies, for exanple, and drill deliberately in a
nonprospective area where the conpany can understand the
representative geol ogy. Since [the area] would be "unl eased,"”

the [exploration conpany] would not want to find conmmercial
hydr ocarbons, but would want to test and see what the geol ogy
| ooked Iike. He said the [exploration conpany] would take that
information and use it in its evaluation prior to a conpetitive
| ease sale to determ ne where and how nmuch it wants to bid.

Nunber 0670

MR. MYERS expl ained that the concept of the [progran] was that
prior to a |lease sale, an [exploration conpany] mght drill in
sonme of the Interior basins [using this type of] test. He said

there wasn't the sane interest that there was in the past,
especially in the offshore basins where a dozen different
conpani es are participating. He said in those cases the state
could accelerate an [exploration conpany's] drilling one of the
well's or subsidize the drilling of the well up to 50 percent on
unl eased state lands, or to a |lesser extent on federal or Native
| ands. Having the criteria for evaluating this programis what
i s valuable about this information to the state.

MR. MYERS said Andex Resources, the conpany interested in

[drilling] in Nenana Dbasin, has proposed [obtaining] an
exploration license from the state. He said the [Ilegislature]
enacted this program in 1994; it allows exclusive exploration
rights to an individual conpany for up to 5,000 acres. He

expl ai ned that Andex Resources has applied for such a I|icense
and it is anticipated that if all goes well the [license] wll
be granted over [a period of tine].

MR. MYERS said in doing this, the state has to issue a best-
interest finding, which nmeans it is in the state's best interest
to issue the Ilicense. He explained that a license is different
from a conventional |ease because the state receives a one-tine
application fee of $1 per acre, and then receives no bonuses or
rentals fromthe | and.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 1, 2002



MR. MYERS said the state receives a work commtnment from the
conpany, which is the conpetitive part. He explained that when
a conpany applies for a license the state publishes information
that announces that the license is available and [accepts bids

on which conpany] wll spend the nobst noney on legitinate
exploration activities. The conpany will typically bid so nmany
mllions of dollars; Andex Resources bid approximately $2.5

mllion, which doesn't go to the state but instead goes into its
expl oration program He said in the areas that the state had
deened that exploration wasn't rapidly occurring or where it
wasn't going to have an area wide sale, it had a nechanism to
offer a | arge anmount of acreage as an incentive to devel opnent.

Nunmber 0808

MR. MYERS said in a typical case the exploration license is a
very positive incentive; in this case, it is estimted to be
worth about $10.5 million in terns of what the state would
normal |y have gotten if it had received its mninmum $5 bid per
acre and had received the normal rentals during the period of a
typi cal seven-year |icense. He reiterated that he thinks it is
a good inducenent. He expressed enthusiasm because there is a
current applicant that is in the process of attenpting to obtain
a license.

MR. MYERS explained that the way the exploration credit would
apply in this particular case. Prior to drilling a well, the
applicant would cone to the state and announce that it was
requesting an EIC. He said the state would then have to [review
it] and the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) conm ssioner
woul d determ ne whether the information was of sufficient value
to the state that it wanted to contribute to the cost of the
well. The comm ssioner would have the discretion to give up to
50 percent [EIC] on |leased state |and or 25 percent of the cost
of the well if it was drilled on privately owned or federally
owned land; the cost will be determned on a footage basis by
the well or by line-mle or square mle on the seismc data.

Nunber 0914

MR. MYERS reiterated that if the state values the information,
it could contribute to the cost of the well. He suggested that
the state has other advantages such as being allowed to show the
data to third parties, which in sone cases could be a
significant value to the state. If the well was drilled on
"unl eased” land and the state was going to have a conventional

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 1, 2002



sale in the area and wanted to pronote the well, it couldn't
give the data to a third party but it could show the third party
the prospective seismc data, well data, etcetera. He said the
challenge in regard to an exploration license is that another
conpany could not be pronmoted into the basin because of the
excl usive exploration rights given to the third party.

Nunber 0988

MR. MYERS explained that the EIC would also be valuable if the
state valued the information on a well drilled on privately
owned land or federal land for which the state would not

typically receive the data for 24 nonths. He said on state |and
the state gets the data within 30 days after the conpletion of
the well, and it gets the seismc data after it is shot via the
permt to shoot on state land. He said on privately owned | and
the state does not get the seismic data, but that data may be of
value to the state, and it my want to pay for it. He said on
private lands, the [EIC] would either accelerate the state's
getting the data, if needed, or would allow the state to acquire
seismc data that it wouldn't otherw se receive.

Nunber 1016

MR. MYERS explained that this program has never actually been
used; in the Jlast seven years [DNR] has received two
applications for an EIC under this program one was for seismc
data regarding National Petroleum Reserve-Al aska (NPR-A) by
Anadarko [Petroleum Corporation]; the state |ooked at the

request and said, "Yes, we're not going to get this data
[ ot herwi se]. It's inportant to our state lands imediately
adjoining NPR-A." Therefore, the state offered an EIC of 18
percent to Anadarko. He said Anadarko decided it did not want
to accept the EIC because of the state's ability to show the
[seismc] data to third parties however. He explained that in

the other case, sone geochemi cal data was being shot in an area
where the state had sonme great seismc coverage and didn't think
the data was inportant enough to grant an EIC, so it was deni ed.
He said the $30 million in the EIC fund is still fully there and
intact; to date, the state has had no applications for an EIC

for wells. He stated that DNR is neutral on this bill and
believes it is the [committee's] policy call on how this bill is
used.

Nunber 1190

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 1, 2002



COCHAIR MASEK asked if this bill is applicable statewde to
[those wanting to explore] beyond the Nenana basin.

MR. MYERS said yes, it would certainly apply statew de as well

as to federally and privately owned | and. He said one of the
challenges with this bill, in applying it to a licensed area, is
that [DNR] would have to [determ ne] whether the value of that
information is significant to the state. He reiterated that
that was the intent of the program He commented that the
intent was not to decrease the risk in the drilling of
commercial wells; rather, it was all focused toward the val ue of
the information. He suggested that if the state wants the

program to be applied differently in order to stimulate
comerci al devel opnent, then it should set the intent to limt
the risk to the party drilling. He comented that the intent is
the value of the data and the legislative history really
strongly supports that.

Number 1204

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN expl ained that he'd asked for that review
because several nenbers of the committee were not present in
1994 or [may not] have understood what this bill did. He asked
if it was true that several basins have not [been drilled] and
as a result there is a lot of speculation about what those

basins m ght have. He suggested that the renoteness from
[transportation] to narket nay be a deterrent to wusing the
[ElIC]. He reiterated that the [committee] would like to keep
this bill if there is a [conpany] that would like to use it,

especially a [conpany] within proximty to an existing pipeline
to be able to get it to market if it does discover sonething.

Nunmber 1265

MR. MYERS concurred with Representative Geen's coment. He
expl ai ned that there have been positive indications. Currently,
DNR has three applications for exploration licenses: two in the
Susitna basin and one in the Nenana basin; DNR has also granted
a license in the Copper River basin. He said approxinmately 2
mllion acres is involved in these |licenses; the pattern
i ndicates these are all primarily gas-prone basins.

Nunber 1389
MR. MYERS suggested that they are pretty nmuch along the route of

a prospective pipeline, near the Anchorage Bowl or the Fairbanks
area, where there are local markets that should have a demand

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 1, 2002



for gas, either now or in the future. He suggested that this is
a positive indication that the market is driving this and that
the expectation of a commercial gas line is driving a new round
of exploration.

MR. MYERS comment ed that one of the encouragi ng things about the
Nenana basin, in particular, is that the market in Fairbanks is
right for the gas; the geology of the basin is very
"prospective," and right now gas conmands a very high price. He
said liquefied natural gas (LNG shipped to [Fairbanks] gets

about $8 per mBtu [million British thermal units] or mllion
cubic feet (ncf) at the burner tip, which is a very lucrative
price. He reiterated that the economcs are there for gas
exploration in the basin. He said the basin is not that far
from the Fairbanks infrastructure, and he thinks that there is a
very commercially viable opportunity in the Nenana basin. He
commented that the license will help that process a |ot.

MR. MYERS said the question [involves] how nuch "incentivizing"
needs to be done versus how nuch will be done naturally by
mar ket forces. He said in regard to economcs, at current
prices there is a netback of about $4 a nctf to the well head

which is itself a great incentive if the basin has conmmercial
gas. He explained that the basin is about 20,000 feet deep with
|l ots of coal; DNR has good geochem cal data to support that it
has generated the gas and there are good reservoir rocks. He
reiterated that it is a very prospective basin. He said DNR was
encouraged by it back when it did the final state |and sel ection
and therefore picked up as nuch of the acreage as possible in

t he basin. He said the positive news is that exploration wll
occur in this basin; a license is a great tool to get it there.
He indicated that licensing is in progress for the Susitna

basin, as well as potentially to the north in the Yukon Flats
where both oil and gas nmay exist.

MR. MYERS suggested that earlier rounds of exploration in these
basins stopped mainly because there wasn't really a market for
gas. He said [conpanies] were looking for conmercial oil, and
in these cases the test wells did not suggest good oil source
rocks in many of these basins.

Number 1459
REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the original policy behind
using exploration credits was so the state could get nore

information, which it could then show to third parties, and have
a better understanding of what was happening in those areas.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 1, 2002



Nunmber 1476

MR. MYERS answered yes; it was the value of the information to

the state. He explained that at that point in tinme the
exploration-licensing program [did not exist]. He said if this
information is mnade available before a conpetitive sale, it
m ght increase the level of activity and interest. He suggested

that the data is valuable when the state needs that data to
assess land selection or other purposes. The value of getting
data that it would not otherwise receive on private |ands or
federal |ands was al so inportant.

Number 1500

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the exploration 1licensing
statute that M. Mers had expl ai ned was in pl ace.

MR. MYERS answered yes.
Nunber 1514

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if that allows $1 an acre and if
the license can be converted to a lease if a discovery is made.

MR. MYERS explained that it is $1 a acre for the state, so that
on a 500, 000-acre application an [exploration conpany] would pay
a $500,000 application fee. He said the [exploration conpany]

commts to a certain-mllion-dollar [amount] of exploration
expenditures; DNR doesn't dictate what the expenditure anounts
are, which just have to be reasonable exploration costs. He

said those costs could be for wells; seismc, gravity, or
magneti c data; or geologic fieldwork. He explained that that is
the conpetitive part: the party that bids the highest |evel of
work comm tnent, which is based on dollars, is the party that
wins the conpetitive part of the bid. Once the party has the
license, it has a negotiated period wth DNR for that |icense,
typically, five up to a maxinum of ten years; at the end of ten
years, it has the right to convert the entire anobunt of acreage
into a |ease. He explained that the lease term is at 12.5
per cent. At that point, it pays rentals, but no bonus; it's a
nonconpetitive program which allows the conpany to explore. He
mentioned exploring to "high-grade" the acreage that it wants or
taking it all in a nonconpetitive [way]. He reiterated that
this is a good tool to see for exploration in the Interior
basi ns.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 1, 2002



Number 1603

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if this would add onto the
| egi sl ation already in place.

Nunber 1610

MR. MYERS answered that she was correct. He said it is also an
existing program up to [the year] 2004 both progranms could be
used. He pointed out that the issue that had not been addressed
is that it's clearly on state |and, unleased acreage. He said a
license is not really a lease; it still [gives] exclusive
exploration rights to the party. He said DNR is checking with
the Departnent of Law to make sure that a license is not a
| ease; the prelimnary view of it is that they are distinct. He
suggested that it would allow DNR to give extra credit on a
license. He reiterated that it's still prelimnary.

Number 1651

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked how nmuch is known about certain
areas of the state such as the Tanana River basin. She
cormented that she had heard testinony that there was a high
potential there. She asked if her understandi ng was accurate.

Nunmber 1668

MR. MYERS said there are two wells drilled into the basin. One
was drilled by Union G| Conpany of California (Unocal), and the
other was drilled by ARCO Alaska, Inc. (ARCO. Following a
conpetitive sale in 1982, ARCO drilled the last well into the
basi n. He said state sold a fair anmount of acreage in that
sale; there have been conpetitive sales. He explained that at
that point in time the conpanies were |looking for oil; two wells
were drilled, one by Unocal and one by ARCO and a regional grid
of seismc data was shot.

MR. MYERS explained that the state has that [information]
avai l abl e, which very clearly outlines the basin; there is also
gravity and magnetic data that support the belief that this is a
very deep basin, about 20,000 feet in depth; it's a very young
basin and has good reservoir rocks as well as lots of coals.

MR. MYERS said the basin has generated enough geochem cal data
to suggest that those coals have generated plenty of gas; there
is a fairly low likelihood of oil in the basin, based on sone
potential oil source rocks that are primarily gas-prone source

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 1, 2002



rocks. He said basin [indisc.] very abruptly and has exposures
of sonme of the reservoir and source rocks on the planks of the
basi n.

Nunber 1749

MR. MYERS said the Usibelli Coal area is an exanple of those
simlar rocks exposed at the surface. He suggested that the
coals and the sandstones found at Usibelli would nmake good

reservoirs into the basin. He said that basin has generated gas
and has lots of good reservoir rocks; the challenge is whether
it has a good seal or good tracking nechanism He nentioned
that the regional seismc data has very nice geologic structures
on it, large structures; the key elenents appear to be there

but it still has an elenment of risk to it. He said DNR has a
| ot nmore data on this basin than on nost of the Interior basins
because of the wells and the seismc [data]. He said the data
was very positive for gas, but not so positive for oil. He
commented that he thinks this is why earlier explorers left.

Nunber 1785

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said it |ooks as though there is not a
whole lot of risk there and now there is a market for it. She
said the policy debate is about how far the [l egislature] should
go in ternms of giving a break to a conpany that cones in when it
is already known that it is a good area and a ready narket. She
mentioned that it appears it is going to happen whether the bill
is [passed] or not. She asked M. Myers for a response.

Nunber 1825

MR MYERS said if the original intent is the value of the
information, then that wuld be the determnate that the
comm ssi oner would have to weigh in deciding what size of EICis
[given]; that judgnment can't be nade until the |ocations of the
wel |l are known, etcetera. He said the second question is nuch
nore difficult, which is when an incentive is effective and when
is it "icing on top of the cake." He suggested that the problem
with the EIC is that it isn't automatic. The comm ssi oner has
di scretion to | ook at those factors and could give 10 percent if
he/ she thought it was appropriate, for exanple. It is also
difficult to know if the conpany would explore [because of] or
wi t hout the incentive. He said in his personal experience, the

license itself is a very powerful incentive. He said in his
opi nion, because a license requires a wrk comitnent, the
conpany will have sufficient data to decide whether it wants to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 1, 2002



drill; that drilling will largely be based on "prospectivity,"
based on what is seen in the seismc data and how the geology is
tied into that, as well as the conpany's assessnent of the costs
of devel opnent, building the pipeline, and getting into the
mar ket .

Nunber 1921

MR. MYERS said he thinks it is the market forces that drive it,
and generally the incentives are a fairly ineffective tool. He
said is a sonewhat subjective judgnment based on his own industry
experience and background, rather than soneone else's. He

suggested that conpanies would argue that the [EIC] does reduce
risks for them He wondered if it was enough risk-reduction to
change behavior; he noted that is always the challenge and the
guesti on. He said in this case, the way that he reads the
current EIC statutes and regulations, the comm ssioner would
really have to look at the value of the data. He said a |license
di m nishes the ability to use that data to raise conpetition, so
the question is how large a grant [the comm ssioner] woul d nmake,
which M. Myers said he cannot answer. He said the
[ comm ssi oner] would have to wei gh the individual situation.

Number 1959

CO CHAIR MASEK turned attention to page 1, lines 9-11, which
refers to the conm ssioner and says the qualified applicant mnust
be approved before drilling or geophysical work comrences. She
commented that that probably has a lot of "weight to carry.”
She refers to the last part of the bill, which says, "copies of
all raw and processed data derived from drilling"; and goes on
to say that it's "within 30 days after the conpletion,
abandonnment, or suspension of the well." She said there are

good safeguards in [place].
Nunber 2019

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN addr essed Representati ve Kerttula's
concern. He said the biggest oil field in North Anerica is
Prudhoe Bay, |ocated on the Barrow "arch", which was a highly
prospective area. He explained that the North Prudhoe Bay fault
has separated the Prudhoe Bay field, which is productive, and
another sister field that BP drilled years ago and spent about
$50 mllion on. He said it was the same "arch,"” the sane
"trap,” and it was barren; there were 13 wells drilled before
the discovery of Prudhoe Bay. He suggested that this bill does
not give anything; it's just as an incentive that if all of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 1, 2002



those things that |ook good prove up, then maybe there is sone
incentive for an oil conpany. He said even if things |ook good,
there is still an enormously high risk. He suggested that if
the [oil conpanies] can be encouraged to [explore], then it
certainly is in the state's best interest.

Nunber 2103

REPRESENTATI VE FATE thanked M. Mers for the time spent on his
testi nony. He said he didn't want to suggest to anybody that
"it's a slamdunk.”™ He said the belief is that there is a high
potential in a basin. He comented that to his know edge there
had never been any three-dinmensional (3-D) seismc work done in
there, which he said really is the state of the art. He asked
M. Mers how much 2-D [seism c work] had been done and how t hat
basin was delineated [from] the two wells that had been done
al nost 20 years ago.

Number 2150

MR. MYERS said he doesn't have the exact line-mles, but there
were two regional seismc grids shot there, basically far-apart
lines just to kind of outline the basin sufficiently to get the
fringes of the basin. He said it was 2-D data, which is fairly
good-quality data, but it's certainly not adequate to drill a
prospect in the basin with any confidence. He said the nornal
procedure would be to go into the [basin]; depending on the
style of trapping nechanism [needed], it would be either a
series of closely spaced 2-D lines or a series of 3-D lines.

MR. MYERS said the other part of the data is the gravity and
magnetic data. Sedinmentary rocks are distinguished from igneous
rocks in their |ower density, and they have a different gravity
profile because of that |ower density; gravity data outlines the
basin very clearly because the reservoir rocks are |owdensity
even when conpared to sone of the North Slope rocks. He
expl ained that the basin stands out very clearly in gravity and
magnetic data; this helps to provide a good nodel of the basin.
He said this is based on sonme work done in a [capita
i nprovenent project (CIP)], in terns of getting the gravity and
magnetic data interpreted, which the state did. He expressed
confidence and comrented that the regional seismc grid is good.

Number 2224

MR. MYERS said the two wells did not hit the heart of the basin;
the Totek Hlls ARCO well was drilled on the fringe of the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 1, 2002



basin, and the Nenana 1 Unocal well was not drilled in the

deepest part. He said it is encouraging that they have good
sedi nentary sections and good potential reservoir rocks, and
that gas shows in the well. He comented that this doesn't nean
they have encountered a commercial reservoir. He said the

deepest part of the basin has not been tested; any exploration
program would go in there and either shoot a closely spaced 2-D
survey in the area where they are interested or a 3-D survey if
they are looking for stratigraphic traps, which are nuch nore
subt | e. The [exploration progranmi would also try to apply
techniques that |ooked for direct indications of hydrocarbons,
which can be done in these types of rocks, particularly if
there's gas. He explained that the [exploration program would
| ook for flat spots and bright spots on closely spaced 2-D or 3-
D data; direct hydrocarbon indicators are a possibility here for
gas.

Nunber 2286

MR MYERS said all of those would be prudent before a
[ expl oration progran] spent between $6 mllion and $6.5 mllion
per well; it would need to be fine-tuned with seismc [work].
He said the EIC gets the worknen a | ong ways toward that seismc
grid; it probably wouldn't cover all that they want to shoot,
but it would cover a lot of it. He explained that the conpany
woul d have to decide whether it thought it had a comrercially
vi abl e prospect that cane fromthat data. He reiterated that it
was not [guaranteed].

MR. MYERS remarked that the weakest geologic potential s
proving a seal. He said the structures, reservoir, and gas are
there, but he questioned whether there was a seal to hold the
gas inside that reservoir. That is sonething that 3-D seismc
and 2-D [work] would provide nore certainty about before
drilling [comenced]. He said the other issue is in building
the commercial infrastructure; the findings have to be [good]
enough to justify building a gas treatnent plant, if necessary,
and a pipeline from those facilities. He nentioned that these
are the kinds of risks that oil conpanies take.

MR. MYERS said one of the positive things that exploration
licensing does to accelerate is not only lower capital costs,
but allow a large area of exclusive rights; that allows
conpanies to bring in other conpanies that will pay part of the
exploration costs. He offered an exanple: Andex could share
with two, three, or four other conpanies, giving them a snaller
percentage of interest "in the play” for the capital to explore.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 1, 2002



Number 2360

MR. MYERS expl ained that that kind of "farmng out" of interest
is very common; it happens all of the tinme in the industry,
including on the North Slope [presently] and Cook Inlet. He
said this 1s particularly appropriate here, where the risk
sharing could be done between conpanies; it also provides nore

capital and mnimzes the individual conpanies risks. He
suggested that would be a typical nodel followed in the basins
if exploration gets to the drilling station.

Nunber 2396

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked him if getting the exploration
license itself was an enough of an incentive in regard to the
Tanana basi n.

Number 2499

MR. MYERS said that is what he personally believes, although the
exploration conpany may have a very different opinion of that in
how it assesses the risk. He explained that at this tinme, the
exploration program license is new. It has only issued one
license and is in the process of "this" and two other |icenses;
the prograns need to have a chance to work. He reiterated that
the EIC programis discretionary. The DNR comm ssioner has the
discretion not to grant an [EIC] if he/she doesn't think it is
appropriate, and the comm ssioner has the discretion to limt
t he amount of dollars given in the program

MR. MYERS explained that the difficult part in that
determ nation will be how the [comm ssioner] assesses the val ue
of that data, because it's not going to pronbote a conpetitive
| ease sale. The [comm ssioner] is going to have to justify the
val ue of that data under the current intent, which mght make it
problematic for a large grant of an EIC He commented that he
is not prejudging what the comm ssioner would or wouldn't do.
He said if he |ooks at the straight intent of the EIC |anguage,
he is not sure what the conm ssioner woul d decide regarding the
application, which would be |looked at individually. He
suggested that the "flip-side” is that there are other areas of
the state where the [EIC] m ght be of use as well.

Nunber 2487

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 1, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Mers in what other areas of
the state foresees this com ng up.

Nunber 2499

MR. MYERS said he suspected if anything was done on the Tanana
basin, then the other basins that have |icenses would want equal
treatnment; the two licenses in the Susitna basin and the one in
Copper River would have simlar expectations and could nake
simlar argunents. He nmentioned the Yukon Flats as an area of
interest to the north of a prospective gas line; it is not a |ot
of state land, but federal |and.

MR. MYERS said the other Interior basins are nore difficult;
they're farther frominfrastructure, pipelines, and |arge enough
mar ket s. In those cases, it would be smaller [conpanies]
wanting to test things such as coal-bed nethane on unleased
acreage or nmaybe gas hydrates or sonme nore exotic technol ogy.
He suggested it would largely be done as a science experinent,
perhaps by the Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent
or maybe by a Native corporation, for exanple; it wouldn't be
| ar ge- scal e devel opnent. He said places where this is nost
likely to be seen are along the route, such as a |ocal market
| i ke Fairbanks that's |arge enough to be serviced and has high
val ue for gas.

Nunmber 2586

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noved to report HB 307 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

Nunmber 2594

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked for nore discussion on it.

Number 2609

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN wi thdrew his notion to nove HB 307 out of
commi ttee.

Nunmber 2614
REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she thought that M. Mers raised
two interesting points. The first point, she explained, is that

it seenms the [EIC] is [designed] to give an incentive to
conpanies when there's really a risk, rather than just the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 1, 2002



state's wanting to get the infornmation. She said she is not
really sure how she feels about that, because in sone ways maybe
the only thing that should be measured is whether the
information being gained by the conmpany is valuable to the
state.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if it is the risk to the conpany,
which she said seenms to be a fairly low risk, that [the
commttee] is worried about. She asked if that is the neasure
the [commttee] wants in regard to the areas around the gas
i ne. She said the second point is the question of what the
risk is back to the state: if it's a sure thing or very close
to it, then how much noney does the [state] stand to |ose? She
indicated she is not sure if this applies to this legislation or
to future |egislation. She suggested this may provide several
ways for conpanies to get breaks. She asked if the other
commttee nenbers had simlar thoughts or concerns.

Number 2680

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN reiterated that there is risk to the
conpany, not to the state. He said the conpany would have to
wei gh that, which is probably the biggest portion of determ ning
whet her to spend the noney. He nentioned probability and said

both are added wup and assigned percentage factors. He
reiterated his point about the drilling done in Prudhoe Bay.
Drilling is very expensive. In drilling wells one through

twelve, [the conpany] lost out, but it was the thirteenth well
that hit [oil], by chance.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN reiterated that there are all sorts of
risks. The [conpany] has to first find the "trapnent” and then
find that it is filled with something. He said the state is
ri sking some anount of noney that it mght have received, had
the [exploration conpany] gone in there on its own wthout the
El C He pointed out that, as M. Mers had testified, there
were two [instances] when there was a possibility of using the
EIC, but they didn't work out: in one instance, the conpany
didn't want to share the information; in the other, it wasn't
worth it for the state to [give an EIC] for the information the
state would receive, so it didn't go forward.

Nunber 2769
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN reiterated that it is no guarantee that the

EIC would be given; it is at the conm ssioner's discretion. He
indicated that it could be the exploration conpany that does not

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 1, 2002



want to pursue the EIC due to a provision requiring it to share
that information. He said information is available on the two
wells that were drilled and nobody has come forward in the
Tanana [ basin]. He suggested that there are many concerns that
need to be addressed before a conpany will go in and spend
noney; if the [legislature] can ease sone of those concerns, it
mght result in a huge payback to the state. He said if the
[exploration conpany] goes in there and finds sonething, then
there would still be land available in the basin for
conventional |easing.

Number 2809

REPRESENTATI VE FATE reiterated Representative Geen's statenent
that the risk is huge. He said the [commttee] failed to assess
the deliberations of the boards of directors of these
corporations, including small corporations, when they [pursue
exploration]; they have to nmake the decision of whether or not
to spend $6 nmillion on one hole. He said the 3-D seismc [work]
is extrenely expensive; the board has to determne whether or
not it has the noney to do 3-D seismc [work]. Representative
Fate asked how to weigh the risk of not developing an
environnmentally clean resource against the risk of t he
[ exploration conpany's] not drilling. He suggested that this
presents a big question for the state. He said the [state] runs
the risk of no developnent if there are no incentives and still
wants to have that incentive produce revenues to the state later
on. He said these are the types of things he is concerned
about . He suggested there are certain types of incentives that
dig so deep into the credits given, eventually the state wll
not recapture a great deal of funds; then it my need to be

seriously | ooked at. He said this was not one of those cases.
He suggested that this bill is an extension of |egislation that
currently exists and 1is going to [result] in a wn-wn
si tuation.

Nunber 2917

CO CHAIR SCALZI drew attention to the original intent of the
bill and the question of why the [commttee] was |ooking at
reaut hori zation. He said the [discretion] that the conm ssioner
has on the level of risk assessed to each individual area
satisfied him sonewhat. He said that although the argunent
could be that the commissioner is not going to be as stringent
as he/she should be, that is something that the [legislature] is
going to have to put in the hands of a representative of the
state.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 1, 2002



TAPE 02-4, SIDE B
Number 2975

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE conment ed that she could see the value to
the state in collecting the raw and processed data that is
derived fromthe [stratigraphic] test wells. She indicated that
there is risk and the EIC could be offered as an incentive. She
suggested that the value of that data would be of good value to
the state. She said the incentive is the devel opnent of new
sources of energy for the state, particularly in rural Al aska.
She suggested that this bill presents an opportunity [for
devel opnent] . She commented that this is sone of the cleanest
and nost environnentally friendly energy [avail able].

Number 2907

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN reiterated M. MWers' coment that the
basin has a huge anount of sedinentary rock as opposed to
igneous rock in which oil is not found. He said sedinentary
rock is an encouragenent because both oil and gas hydrocarbons
can be found in it, [but there is no] guarantee.

Number 2875
REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said this bill in and of itself really
isn't such a concern. She explained that if the next bill cones

along and it |ooks as though the three [bills] work together,
however then she would start to have a nuch bigger concern. She
said while developnment should be encouraged in areas that
present a return back to the state, it is hard to know if [this
is an incentive]. She comrented that she is satisfied with the
current |anguage that the comm ssioner's decision has to be
based on whether or not the J[E( provides worthwhile
information to the state.

Nunmber 2805

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noved to report HB 307 out of committee
wi th individual recommendations and a zero fiscal note. There
bei ng no objection, HB 307 was noved out of the House Resources
St andi ng Conmi ttee.

HB 232- REMOTE RECREATI ONAL CABI N SI TE SALES

Nunber 2786

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 1, 2002



CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the next order of business before
the commttee would be HOUSE BILL NO 232, "An Act permtting
state residents to purchase renote recreational cabin sites.”

Number 2722

DI CK MYLIUS, Resource Assessnent & Devel opnent Manager, Division
of Mning, Land and Water, Departnent of Natural Resources,

testified via tel econference. He infornmed the commttee that

this bill creates a new state land disposal but is simlar in
sonme respects to the renote recreational program established in
1997 by the |egislature. It allows people to pick where they
wish to stake and then apply to DNR for that site. The | aw
general ly descri bes what state |and would be avail abl e under the
program it establishes spacing requirenents for distances
between sites and contains limts on the amount of waterfront

| and that can be staked.

MR. MYLIUS expl ained that the programis on a first-come, first-
served basis; applicants stake their two and a half acres, apply
to DNR, and then survey, appraise, and purchase the parcel.
Unlike laws regarding the existing state |and di sposal prograrns,
the |law does not authorize DNR to determ ne what areas are open
when openi ngs occur or to ensure there is adequate access before
areas are opened. He said DNR s biggest concern with this
program is that it duplicates an existing program that 1is
wor ki ng, creating a new state |and disposal very simlar to the
exi sting renote recreational cabin program

Number 2630

MR, MYLIUS explained that this program was established by
statute in 1997, but was funded for the first tinme only two
years ago; last year DNR offered 295 parcels in ten areas. The
departnment received alnost 700 applications for the existing
renote recreational cabin program opening |ast year. He said
because the program was a new program and there wasn't tinme to
prepare new areas for offering, the initial offerings were in
[ previously] honesteaded renote-cabin areas. He said DNR pl ans
to offer another 300 "stakings" under this programin June.

MR. MYLIUS said in future years, DNR will offer new and better
areas under the existing renote recreational cabin program It
takes two to three years to nmake new areas available due to
public review and notice requirenents, best-interest findings,
|l and-title work, and the need to coordinate with nunicipalities
on platting and planning issues. This last step, the need to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 1, 2002



neet borough platting requirenents, is essential to allow
municipalities to have sone control over how they devel op. He
said the amount of tine to do this is significant; to get
approvals of last year's projects in four Boroughs required 11
separate nmeet i ngs bef ore platting boar ds and pl anni ng
conmi ssi ons.

MR. MYLIUS explained that the current program costs about
$400,000 a year, and DNR forecasts annual revenues of about
$400, 000 starting in FY 05 [fiscal year 2005]. Because of the
time needed to survey and appraise parcels, revenues are limted
during the first several years of any stake-it-yourself program
Regardl ess of how the program is set wup, stake-it-yourself
prograns are not big noneynakers; many past prograns cost the
state nore to admnister than the state ever received in
revenue, although DNR believes the ~current program m ght
generate a positive cash flow.

Number 2610

MR MLIUS said in addition to duplicating this existing
program the renote recreational cabin program proposed by [this

| egi slation] has several significant problens. First, the
program does not provide an opportunity for either public
notice, as required by the constitution, Article VIII, Section
10, or a best interest finding as required by AS 38.05.035(e).
The bill requires that the sale be consistent with the public
interest, but does not allow tinme for this to occur. He said
the bill gives DNR only 30 days to approve an application; it is

i npossible within 30 days to do a land title review, best-
interest finding and public notice; to receive and process
public comments; and to issue a final decision.

Nunmber 2534
MR, MYLIUS said the second problem is the program will cause
difficulty in meet i ng nost muni ci palities’ platting

requi renents. The current renote recreational cabin program was
designed so that nunicipalities could exercise sone control over
how land disposals occur wthin their boundaries. [ This
| egi slation] does not allow for such nunicipal input. For
exanple, it sets a maximum lots size of 2.5 acres, which is
bel ow m nimum | ot sizes required in many boroughs and bel ow the
10-acre size generally accepted for onsite sewage di sposal.

Nunber 2493

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- February 1, 2002



MR. MYLIUS explained that DNR has been working closely wth
municipalities to make the existing renote recreational cabin
program work. For exanple, last year DNR had 11 neetings on the
program including 4 separate neetings with the Fairbanks North
Star Borough Platting Board and 2 wth the Matanuska-Susitna
Platting Board. He said as a result of input from the
Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough, DNR dropped four of the eight areas
it was considering for last year's sale. He said under this
bill there is no opportunity to work with the boroughs on these
kinds of issues. If this bill does not exenpt this program from
muni ci pal platting requirenents, then DNR would need to either
approve parcels that have not been approved by the platting
authority or disapprove any applications submtted for parcels
wi t hin boroughs. It would be difficult to imagine that DNR
woul d ignore |local platting requirenents.

MR. MYLIUS offered his third point, that this program will be
difficult to inplenent because the legislation gives limted
gui dance to DNR or the public. The law has few restrictions

It does not allow DNR to determ ne what areas are open or when
openings occur, or to ensure there is adequate access before
areas are open, he reiterated. As a result, DNR anticipates
that when the program goes into effect, there wll be
considerable confusion with the public regarding where state
|l and exists that is available, conflicting clains to parcels,

and argunents about staking. The Departnment of Natura
Resources also anticipates significant access concerns, such as
staking on trails, staking on non-state |and, and nore. He

pointed out that the current program avoids those problens by
carefully doing land status research and access research before
areas are nmade avail able for di sposal

Nunmber 2445

MR, MYLIUS said DNR s fourth concern is that the programw || be
expensive, particularly in its initial years. The Departnent of
Nat ural Resources' fiscal note shows $585,000 for the first year
and slightly less in subsequent years. Because such |arge areas

are being opened, there will be considerable confusion with the
public regarding what land is available. He explained that with
few rules, there will be conflicting clains that DNR will need

to resol ve.
Number 2418

MR. MYLIUS suggested that this will place considerable demands
on DNR to provide information to the public, particularly

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- February 1, 2002



through the DNR public information offices in Anchorage,
Fai r banks, and Juneau. He said DNR will need to provide the
public with accurate l|and-status information for mllions of
acres of state land so the public knows what land is avail abl e,
including the location of existing third-party interests, Native
allotment |ocations, and trail and access information. He said
this program is also very inefficient because it allows
applicants to stake where and when they decide, and then
requires DNR to neet deadlines for approvals for each individua
parcel . The program will require DNR to do separate title
reports, best interest findings, public notices, and so forth
for each applicant. The current program allows DNR to conbi ne
those for |large areas. He said DNR also has several very
specific concerns about the bill that it would be happy to share
with the commttee.

Number 2351

CO CHAI R MASEK asked M. Mylius to provide a copy of his witten
testinony to the conmttee.

Number 2340

MR, MYLIUS, in response to Representative Kerttula, reiterated
his concern about the difficulty of neeting borough platting

requirenents. He explained that borough platting approval is
required in order to subdivide |and; subdivision is defined by
creating even one new |ot. He said each one of the parcels is

going to be considered by nunicipalities as a subdivision.
Under the existing program before DNR identifies which areas it
will open, it goes to the platting board and asks for conceptua
approval of the land offering. He said this program doesn't
al l ow such an opportunity. The nost significant of the types of
things that the platting boards |look at is probably m ninum | ot
si ze.

MR. MYLIUS expl ai ned that nost boroughs have mninum | ot sizes
of 5 to 10, which allows adequate space for onsite sewage
di sposal system this |law sets a parcel size of 2.5 acres, which
is below that m nimum He said it doesn't provide DNR with any
ability to go to the boroughs and get their approval or
di sapproval. The concern is that there is no way to involve the
borough platting authority. One problemis that when the fina
survey is done, the borough platting boards nay not approve
t hose surveys because they aren't mninmum | ot size; that [would
occur] after the person had al ready invested noney into staking,
surveyi ng, and appraising the |and.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 1, 2002



Number 2203

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN pointed out that the [|anguage used in

proposed AS 38.05.610, line 5, of the bill - "the conm ssioner
shall"™ - may conflict with the |anguage in AS 38.05.600, which
is that the comm ssioner "nmay". He expressed concern that sone

of the "notw thstandings" may not be in the best interest of the
state. He commented that he is in favor of private ownership of
nore land, but isn't sure this is the way to do it. He said
this bill bypasses the previously used lottery system He noted
that the ternms of sale are covered. He expressed concern that
the bypass in AS 38.05.067, which allows preference for
veterans, may not be in the best interest of the state. He
commented that there are sone concerns that probably need to be
addressed with sonmebody fromthe director's office.

Nunber 2094

CO CHAIR MASEK appointed Representatives Fate, Geen, and
Kerttula to a [subconmttee] to prepare a proposed conmttee
substitute (CS) and try to resolve the issues.

Number 2016

REPRESENTATI VE FATE, speaking as sponsor of HB 232, stated that
during the last two years there has been acceleration of the
| and di sposal by the State of Al aska. He pointed out that the
bill was put together with the help of Carol Carroll, D rector,
Division of Support Services, Departnment of Natural Resources,
who is [al so] enployed by the Departnment of MIlitary & Veterans

Affairs. He said there are sone things that he tried to
incorporate that the [comm ttee] had di scussed.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE suggested that everything is done by lottery
not by design, but because of necessity. He suggested that
there are too many applicants for one piece of disposa
property; the [state] has the disposals because of efficiency in
| arger projects, and the disposals [are] near subdivisions. He
said the [current] disposals do have the advantage of [acquiring
| and] in renote areas. He suggested that these [issues] can be
over cone. He said he believes it is necessary to allow people
to obtain the piece of property that they want, especially those
peopl e who have used those pieces of property for three or nore
years. He indicated that the anmendnents pertain to these
issues. He reiterated that he would Iike to have Carol Carrol

i nvol ved in the subconmmittee.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- February 1, 2002



Nunmber 1872

COCHAIR MASEK indicated HB 232 would be held for further
consi derati on.

ADJ OQURNMENT

Nunmber 1858

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:25 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- February 1, 2002



